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the hills, where the buildings of the Technion and of the new
Haifa University are rapidly rising.

Sylvia Mann

23N 90 [0 .0 AR TIWBET 0 = YT YD MR 0Yan
FLei R ki B T i 0 Pl [ e 1 e Y 17
THE STAMPS WERE DESIGNED BY “ROLI® — G. ROTHSCHILD & Z, LIPPMANN, TEL AVIV
PHOTOS:  “PRI-OR", TEL AVIV, "KEREN-OR®; W. BRAUMN; D. HARRIS; JERUSALEM,




waiting to load or discharge their various shipments, Almost
adjoining the port, the Carmel range rises in three well-marked
levels — the low foothills, the medium, gently-curving heights,
and the high mountains still bearing much of their natural
growth of stone-pine, thorny yellow gorse, and sweet-scented,
grey-green shrubs.

Before the Children of lIsrael entered the Promised Land, this
part of the coast was setled by Phoenicians, whao lived in
small villages, two of which were Shikmona, on the share
immediately south of present-day Haifa, and Salmona, now
covered by Bat Galim, one of the city's suburbs.

When, in the third century C.E. — the Talmudic, or late Roman
period — Haifa became known by that name, it was over-
whelmingly Jewish, and famed for its sailors, craftsmen and
scholars. A focus of Jewish learning until the Moslem invasion
of 636 and even afterwards, it was the home of many rabbis
and sages.

The year 1100 C.E. saw Jews and Arabs, fighting side by side,
bravely but unsuccessfully resisting an attack on Haifa by
Crusader forces, who swept in and slaughtered the entire Jew-
ish cemmunity. Re-fortified and renamed “Cayphas” it was a
Crusader stronghold until taken by the Mameluke sultan, Bey-
bars, in 1265,

For 500 years, Haifa remained an insignificant hamlet, until
rebuilt by the governor of Galilee, bedouin sheikh Daher el-
Omar.

By 1854 it had a growing population of over 2,000, and its
inclusion in the railway network in 1905 spelt further progress,
for here was a seaport offering transport by both rail and
road to all parts of the country and beyond. The transfer of
power from the Turkish to the British government at the close
of Werld War | also increased Haifa's importance, as did the
1948 War of Independence.

Haifa today is the third largest city in Israel, with aboui 215,000
inhabitants including at least 13,000 Moslems, Druze, Chris-
tians and members of the Bahai sect, whose world centre is
on the Carmel. Although heavily industrialized, it retains the
charm and homely atmosphere of a far smaller town.
Around the harbour area are concentrated all facilities for the
handling of passenger and heavy cargo, as well as the oil
refineries; factories; huge silos for grain, and the workshops
and stores needed for the smooth running of this enormous
complex. Inland, on the Carmel's lower slopes, are shops,
light industries and residential districts. Higher up is the golden-
domed Bahai temple, set in elaborate formal gardens, while
luxurious willas, hotels and restaurants climb to the crest of



Landscaped around the Sakhne Pool, now called Breichat Amal,
its smooth green lawns, dotted with flowering shrubs, stretch
over @ wide area sloping down to the water's edge. Tall, leafy
frees offer shelter from the glare of the sun, while picnickers
and bathers, resting after their exertions, welcome the oppor-
tunity of relaxing under the shady boughs.

Many a pleasant hour may be spent in Gan Ha'Shlosha, for
in addition to its natural charm, the lower reaches of the
stream pass ancient structures — agricultural installations, water
mills, conduits, stores and dwellings. Nir David, the adjoining
kibbutz which cares for the tourist services of the park, has a
small museum of archaeclogical finds made in the neigh-
beurhoed,

Idea| for good swimmers, the deep, transparent waters of the
Sakhne Pcol, comfortably warm in temperature, are constantly
renewed by a fresh-water spring issuing from an underwater
cave.

A dam, recently rebuilt and extended, keeps the water level
at the same height, its overflow creating a waterfall. Gentle
in summer, but full and turbulent after the winter rains, the
waterfall splashes into a shallow pool and continues as a
meandering brook, eventuslly joining with the Harod River.

DEEP IN THE HEART OF THE MNEGEV, in the Wilderness of
Zin, is En Avedat. Its green, gushing fountains, miraculously
emerging from the solid rock in the arid heat of the bleak
southern desert, are one of lsrael's most amazing sights.

The ancient Nabateans brought water to the town of Avedat
by sinking a vertical shaft through the ground to the spring’s
water level. The well-shaft can still be seen at the foot of the
mound, near the bath-house,

For a closer view of En Avedat and ifs immediate surround-
ings — now a Mational Park — an approach road leads from
Kibbutz Sde Boker to the broad cutlet of the wadi. Through
wild and lovely terrain, the floor of the creek winds between
brilliantly-white, sheer scarps to a crystal-clear, oblong pond.
Beyond it, the canyon seems to clase in and to become deeper
and deeper until a second, rounder pool is reached.

The track goes no further, and the upper pool of En Avedat,
with its rich spring, is almost inaccessible. Its abundant over-
flow, however, spills along the wadi, giving the area round
about En Avedat a strange and exfraordinary beauty.

HAIFA, ISRAEL'S MAIN SEAPORT, is situated between Haifa
Bay and Mount Carmel. Tranquil blue waters fill the capacious
bay where liners, tankers and cargo boats ride at anchor,



THE JUDEAN HILLS, PART OF ISRAEL'S rocky spine, run north
and south, parallel to and between the coastal plain and the
Jordan Valley. :

These highlands form the watershed separating the Mediter-
ranean and the Dead Sea, and the two aspects of the Judean
Hills — the west and the east — present very different pictures.
On the west, gentle slopes and fertile valleys descend to the
chalky foothiils bordering the coastal plain, while on the east
is the Wilderness of Judea, with steep inclines scarred by deep
ravines. In winter, these carry torrential flood waters which
sweep away the surface soil and loose stones, leaving behind
them only barren rock.

The resultant saddle-shaped depression greatly influenced Jeru-
salem’s destiny, for it created a pass through the mountains to
the lands beyond the Jordan, Already on the Way of the
Fathers' — the hilltop highway from the Morthern Empires
through Samaria and Beersheba to Egypt — Jerusalem became
a junction linking East and West, and a centre of trade, com-
merce and learning.

Differences between the two sides of the Mountains of Judea
were not confined to landscape, climate and rock formation
but extended to human geography. To the west, right through
the ages, there have been established settlements. Here the
elements were favourable, for the hill slopes were sufficiently
shallew to permit terracing; there were numerous springs, and
the winter rain fell steadily, not in fierce, swirling streams
that could wash away the good earth.

Conversely, on the arid eastern side lived the nomads — the
shepherds with their flocks of sheep and goats; neither planting
nor putting down roots, but ever wandering from one of the
few springs to the other, in search of pasture. The frackless
desert with its caves became a place of refuge for those
fleeing from persecution, like David who escaped from Saul
and “dwelt in the strongholds of Engedi.” (I Samuel 23:29).
Others sought the peace and tranquillity of the desert in order
to mediate undisturbed or to commune with God in solitude,
Best known were, the first century B.C.E. Essenes, who lived
in Qumran and left a heritage of the famous Dead Sea scrolis.

GAN HA—SHLOSHA — THE GARDEN OF THE THREE — lies at
the foot of Mount Gilboa, in the Beit She'an valley. Named
for Aharon Atkin, David Mossensohn, and Haim Sturman,
members of the Hagana, (lsrael's Defence Force), who were
killed by a mine laid in the vicinity during the Arab riots of
1938, the place has become one of the most beautiful National
Parks in the country.



